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Lake Street Park - Elliott Park

In May of 1929 the Board of Park Commissioners issued a Bid Order to remove buildings along Main Street at the head of
Wedge Pond with the intent of building a Park at that location.

In June of 1929 the Star talked of a “pleasing renovation to North Main Street with the removal of several buildings. The
site has been seeded down with grass to make a pleasant open space.”

At the same time Horn Pond Brook which flowed from Horn Pond to Wedge Pond has been cleaned of debris leading to a
clean water supply for Wedge Pond.

In September of 1929 George Davidson, the Park Commissioner and Past President of Rotary was the speaker at a
luncheon with his topic being “The Improvement of the Waterways of Winchester”. The Horn Pond Brook was part of the
cleanup along Wedge Pond and now a beautiful vista of Wedge Pond can be seen.

The Park Department was working on the new Lake Street Park at the head of Wedge Pond including the building of a rock
garden and the addition of shrubs. E.F. Randall’s Nurseries of Reading rearranged and planted the rockery at the new park.

In October 1965 the Rotary Club petitioned the Town to rename the Lake Street Park after Alfred Dykes Elliott and to
include monies to provide an irrigation system. In December the name change was voted in the affirmative but the request
for funding the irrigation did not pass.

In March 1967 the Rotary Club asked the town to spend $4,500 to install underground irrigation. The club had already
committed funds for landscaping the area.

In April 1967 Lou Snow, Rotary President, made an impassioned plea to the Town to appropriate $4,500 for the irrigation
system at Alfred Dykes Elliott Park when it is extensively improved with plantings by the Rotary Club. Lou rhetorically
asked the Town Meeting Members how proud they were of the Winchester Common. “It used to be an eyesore site, he
reminded them and it was mainly through the efforts of Al Elliott it is as beautiful as it is today. The Rotary with the
cooperation of Home and Garden Club, the Park Department and the Conservation Commission is undertaking the
beautification of Elliott Park. The Selectmen and the Park Commissioner supported the request. The Finance Committee
was not in support of the sprinkler system. The Town Meeting in a near unanimous vote passed the appropriation.

Frost and Higgins Company of Arlington did all the planting of trees and shrubs and D.J. Olivadoti Co. of Winchester did
the walkways and a platform for the memorial stone. The total cost was in the vicinity of $7,000.

The Winchester Star praised the Rotary Club for its efforts in an editorial in May of 1967.

The Park was officially dedicated in May of 1967. Rev. Newt Clay, a Rotarian, called Al ““a homespun boy” in his remarks
at the dedication. Newt spoke of Al’s strengths of character, integrity and service to the Town.

In July of 1968 there was another editorial in tribute of Al Elliott, a native son who devoted his life to making Winchester a
more beautiful place to live. He epitomized “Service Above Self”



WEDGE POND PHOTOGRAPHS BY FRANK H. HIGGINS

Showing before- during- after-construction views of the park later named for Alfred Elliott
(Winchester Archival Center 2019.08)

Notes assembled by historian Ellen Knight 6/24/19

Site History

As recommended by landscape architect Herbert Kellaway and the Winchester Waterways Committee (est. 1927), the
Town of Winchester acquired the properties abutting Wedge Pond which fronted on Main Street, removed the buildings,
and created a park called Lake Street Park and later named Elliott Park.

A special Town Meeting in June 1928 approved acquiring ownership of Horn Pond Brook from the Woburn line to Lake
Street.

The Town also acquired a substantial strip on the shore of Wedge Pond at Main and Lake Streets, as approved at the
Annual Town Meeting in March 1929. During 1929, the buildings were removed and the cellar holes filled. Using Town
ashes for fill, the site was graded in 1930 and was laid out and planted by the Park Department in 1931. A rock garden was
created, and shrubbery and rose gardens were planted.

Photographs

#1 shows the properties on Main Street which would be demolished to make a park on the eastern shore of Wedge Pond.
The buildings pictured stood between Lake Street and the river bridge and were photographed on March 12, 1929.
According to a map in Kellaway’s report, the Taylor family owned all the property except the Garbino and Blunt homes.
Right to left with last known occupants:

718 Main (or 716-718), two-family, home of Biaggio Garbino family as of April 1929. (In 1928, the Trygve Anderson
family was at 716.)

702-706 Main, Taylor wagon house with attached house including (#702) ground-floor commercial space (a grocer in
1916, a plumber in 1925). Behind the Taylor wagon house were a carriage house and shed (shown in #2). The
Verner Carson family lived here in April 1929.

698-700 Main, home of Annie Davey in 1929

694 Main, home of Christopher Morris family in 1928

692 Main, with a Mansard roof, home of John D. Blunt family in 1929

688 Main, home of Charles Chamberlain family in 1928

Bridge — wooden railing is visible (here the water ran under Main Street eventually to empty into the Aberjona River)

678 Main, was the Robert Spong auto paint shop in 1925, numbered 669 in 1928, not listed 1929



#2 shows the rear sides of the above-listed properties on March 12, 1929

The outlet is at the far right, and the first house on the right is #688 Main. #702-706 is in the center and the shed and
carriage house belonging to Taylor are at the shore to the left. At the far left is the rear of the Garbino house.

#3 shows the park under construction, looking north from Main Street and Wedge Pond Road. In the background are
buildings on Lake Street. The building to the right of the trees is the Town’s Water Department building. To its right is
a wooden railing where Horn Pond Brook passed under the street.

#4 shows the park under construction, looking south from the intersection of Lake Street and Main Street. In the left
background is the steeple of the Congregational Church. The trolley tracks belong to the street railway which went
through Winchester center from Woburn to Arlington.

#5 shows the finished park.

#6 is a view across Wedge Pond to the park and buildings on the east side of Main Street belonging to George W.
Blanchard & Co., coal and lumber.

#7 shows the finished park with buildings on Lake Street. At the right is 724 Main, another building owned by George W.
Blanchard. To its left, behind the rock garden, is the Water Dept. building.
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Lake Street Park 1929
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Elliott Park Plaque 1967

A New Memqr_ial Park

Photo by Ryerson

PLAQUE IN MEMORY OF THE LATE ALFRED DYKES ELEIOTT was affixed to a large
stone on a conerete foundation last Thursday in the beginning phase of preparing the attrac-
tive setting by Main and Lake Streets overlooking Wedge Pond as an improved new town park
area. The project is being underwritten by the Winchester Rotary Club. which initiated the
Common’s beautification a few years ago. to honor the late prominent citizen at a cost ex-
ceeding $2.000 in landscape design and plantings. A May 30, 1967, dedication is planned.
Shown at the plaque site are Herbert S. Mullen. Park Department superintendent: Lewis
Snow. president of the Rotary Club: and Sid Elliott. hrother of the late Alfred Elliott whose

memory is honored.

ALFRED DYKES ELLIOTT MEMORIAL PARK (Rycrson Photo)
1968
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May 24, 1929 - Star

TOWN OF WINCHESTER

T

| Bids will be received by

§ the Board of Park Commis-
. sioners for the removal of the
. buildings situated on Main
| Street, adjacent to Wedge
Pond, and being numbered
688, 692, 694, 698, 700, 702,

| 704, 708, 710, T12, 716, and |

| 718 Main Street. :

All of the buildings are of

wood frame construction. |

. The right is rescrved to sell

Cas a whoﬁe, in groups or sep.

arately, as may appear to the

| best advantage of the Town.

| Bids will be opened at the
|| Park Commissioners’ Room,
| Winchester Place on Mond;‘?'

| evening, May 27th, at 8 P. M. !

ids must state the date

| when buildings shall be re. |

moved. |

I  The right is also reserved |

to reject any and all bids. |

By Order of the




June 21, 1929 - Star

A pleasing renovation to North
Main street is the removal of several
of the buildings which have been lo-
cated on the street line at the big
lumber and coal yard of the George
W. Blanchard Company. These build-
ings, directly opposite the new taking
by the town of the Wedge Pond shore,
have been removed and their site
seeded down to grass, making a pleas-
ing open space. The work of remov-
ing the houses and old Taylor stables
on the town property is progressing
rapidly.

June 28, 1929 - Star

Horn Pond Brook, long a bone of
contention, has been practically
cleared from its source to Wedge
Pond. The word practically is used
advisedly, for while this brook has
been cleaned of debris and its banks
restored, its location is such that
constant removal of rubbish is still
necessary to keep it in a clean con-
dition. Fortunately this is becoming
less daily, and as the feed of this
brook is directly out of Horn Pond, a
clean water supply, this phase of the
situation is now under control,

15



September 27, 1929 - Star

The speaker at this meeting was
our own Past President, George., His
topic was “The Imnrovement of the
Waterways of Winchester.” Georege,
who is chairman of our local Park
Commission is particularly well gqual-
ified to deal with this subject. He
 pave particular attention to the de-
' velopment along Horn Pond Brook
and to the Mill Pend,

To those who think that the Park
Caommission has been idle, George of-
fers the explanation that much nre-
liminary work must be completed bo-
fore actual construction begins, For
“instance the Town must acquire rirhts
‘along the Waterways bhefore altera-
' tions are undcrtaken. This has been
' done for the entire leneth of Horn
" Pand Brook and 2long the shores of
| Wedge Pond as far as is practical,
Those who seek evidence of progress
c<hould take a walk along upper Main
Cstreet and observe the beautiful vista
'of Wedege Pond which has  heen
~created by the removal of the un-
sightly buildines which fronted on
l.\'lain strect. The work in this sec-
tion will be pushed ranidly. Work
at the Mill Pond iz still under con-
sideration, but it is probable that an
| appropriation will be made for dredg-
"ing the pond at an earlv date.
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April 10, 1931 - Star

Men . the Park Department have
been busy this week at the new park
on Main street at BaRe street. The
rock beacon which aroused so much
diseussion, pro and con, has been macde
over into a rock egarden, shrubg have
been set out and considerable grading
done,

April 17,1931 - Star

E. ‘PZ.‘Randall of Randall's Nurseries
at 28 South street, Reading, has per-
sonally rearranged and planted the
rockery at the new park on upper
Main street at Lake street with ever-
green, shrubs and a variety of hardy
plants. He has ualso set out a hedge
and corner plantings of flowering
shrubs. When this park is completed
it will be a great improvement to the
section in which it stands, providing
as it does a pleasing view of Wedge
l‘nnd.
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October 1965 - Star

October 1965 — Warrant Article 12 - Star
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December 1965 - Star

December 1965 - Star
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March 30, 1967 - Star

ARTICLE 20:
ground irrigation system at the

Asks the Town to spend $4,500 in installing an under-
Alfred D.

liokt Park by Wedge

Pond and Main Street, requested by the Rm.ury Club, which has al-
ready committed funds for landscaping that park area,

April 6, 1967 - Star

ELLIOTT PARK

Under Article Twenty-Nine the
Rotary Club of Winchester sought
to have the Town appropriate
$4,500 for the purpose of install-
ing an underground irrigation
system in the Alfred Dykes El-
liott Park by Lake and Main
Street so as to properly water
that Town park land when it is
extensively improved with plant-
ings by the Rotary organization.

Lewis B. Snow, president of the
82-member local Rotary Club,
spoke to the issue by rhetorically
asking the Town Meeting Mem-
bers how proud they were of the
Winchester Common. “It used to
be an eyesore site,” he reminded,
“and it was mainly through the
efforts of the late Alfred Elliott
it is as beautiful as it is today,”
he pointed out.

4TH SESSION, cont. page 6B

(continued from page 1)

The Rotary Club contributed
substantially to bovutifying the

common through the leadership
efforts of the late »lfred Elliott,
he noted, and the Rotary Club is
now trying to further beautify the
Center area by making this park
attractive too, with the coopera-
tion of the Home and Garden
Club, the Park Department and
the Conservation Commission, he
said.

“The Rotary Club started its
Annual Auction 15 years ago, led
by the late Alfred Elliott,” Mr.

Snow reported, “and since then

the club has worked hard to make
Winchester a better place to live,
including giving over $110,000
from the Auction to such local

organizations as the Scholarship

Fund, Hospital, Girl Scout Cabin,
Girl and Boy Scouts, Little Lea-
gue, Auxiliary Fire Department,
and WHSR-FM...which is one
of only five public school radio
stations in the nation.”
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April 6, 1967 continued

“In continuing to make Win-
to help beautify it, the club wish-
es to make the Elliott Park an
chester a better place to live, and
attractive asset to the Town by
putting im new walks, benches
along the pond-side, planting
trees and shrubs, and other im-
provements,” Mr. Snow conclud-
ed, “and the club would like to
have the Town’s support in mak-
ing this park land as beautiful as
the Common now is.”

Selectman Armstrong noted
that the Board of Selectmen were
in unanimous accord in strongly
supporting the article. “This
park is in a conspicuous place in
the Center of Town,” he said,
“and it could be a real good asset
to the Town instead of the pres-
ent liability.” It should be a cred-
it to the Town, he continued,
“and water will be the key factor
if it is to survive and stay beauti-

ful—so it needs the irrigation
system.”

Mrs. Gilpatric told the meeting
that “tender loving care iz not
the only prerequisite of good
park lands, they also need water.”
“Take off your glasses of apa-
thy,” she charged, “and take a
good look at that spot by the
First National Store,” for it
needs improving and it must have
an irrigation system to preserve
any improvements.

Park Commissioner Albert A.
MacDonnell said the Park De-
partment supported the article
because “these undergound sys-
tems are necessary, as we have
learned from our experience at
the Common.”

Mr. Amico said the Finance
Committee recommended unfav-
orable action because it did not
feel the Town was ready to take
care of this property, and there
was no reason why the Park
Department, with its garage ac-
ross the street, couldn't hand
water and care for the property.

Malcolm Masters, chairman of
the Conservation Commission,
said that organization strongly
supported the article.

The Town Meeting voted to ap-
propriate the $4,5600 requested in
a near unanimous vote.

Article Thirty sought the
Town’s authorization for the Pub-
lic Library to accept a gift of
$3,000 from an anonymous donor
for an irrigation system there,
and the Town Meeting voted its
approval, with thanks, to the
donor,
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April 27, 1967 - Star

Rotary Club Starts
On New Elliott Park

Work began Tuesday on what is planned 10 be a stunniog new
park area at the junction of Main and Like Streets,

Initinted by the same coopera-
tive group effort in Town that
raised the Common from just
another park to one of the most
attractive Center sites in the
state, the redesigned new park
area by Wedge Pond is named
to honor the man who started
the move to improve the Common
less thun a deende ago, and will
be called the Alfred Dykes ER
liott Memorinl Park.

The push to beautify the site
between Wedge Pond and Main
Street is spearheaded in planning
and financing by the Winchester
Rotary Club, with strong assists
from The Garden Club in plan-
ning of plantings and the Town
Purk Department, which ap-
proved the plans on its land and
got Town Meeting support for
installing o $4,500 underground
watering system,

Frost & Higgins Company of
Arlington i doing all the plant-
ing of trees and shrubbery,

The contracting firm of D. J.
Olivadoti of 6 Wendell Street in
Winchester is constructing con-
crete sidewalk pathways and a
platform for a rock bearing a

plaque dedicating the park to the
late Mr. Elliott.

And the Park Department is
doing excavation work for the

- The park land will be improved
and beautified in the following
way:

The present dirt footpath run-
ning diagonally across the park
from Lake Street opposite the
Town Stables to Main Street op-
posite the First National Store
will be puved with a rough ag-
gregute concrete path with red-
wood or cedar edges and dividing
strips (5 wide). Another short
path will be similarly constructed
leading toward the center of the
park but remaining close to Main
Street, where a memorial plat-
form, rock und plaque will show
an attractive setting.

Surrounding the.platform will
be u ring of white alyssums and
ageratums, red geraniums, junis
pers, pieris and white petunias,
in beds at the back of the stone,
and red ivy along the foundation.

Now existing on the park land
are eight spruce trees, six maples
and one linden; to these will be
added one maple and one linden,
and two weeping willows, along
with some additional shrubbery.

The new Elliott Memorial Park
is expected to be completed by
summertime, and at some time in
the near future, additional plant-
ings are contemplated, as well as
adding some benches st random
under some of the trees facing
toward Wedge Pond and built on

memorial Phuom, pluin‘ grav- concrete  bloek foundations to

el under the concrete walks, and
overseeing the implacement of
the watering system,

The total cost of re-creating a
new park on the long untouched
and potentially attractive site is

according to Lewis B. Snow, pres-
ident of the local Rotary Club.

avoid muddied so0il where people
might sit.

Commenting on the plans and
work begun on the new puark
honoring o former Rotarian and
woll-known civie leader, Mr, Snow
said he saw the new park as “a
healthy and fine addition toward
beautifying the Town—and one
that the Town will reanlly be
proud of for many years to
come."
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May 18, 1967 - Star Editorial
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June 1, 1967 - Star

Elliott Park Is
Dedicated by A
Rotary Ceremony

“He was a builder—and this
new park that is being dedieated
is a fitting and proper remem-
brance to him and the good works
he achieved in this community,”
the Reverend Newton Clay affirm-
ed in dedication ceremonies at the
Alfred D. Elliott Memorial Park
last Thursday afternoon.

Members of the late Alfred El-
liott's family and nearly 100 Win-
chester Rotarians gathered at the
new park site at Main and Lake
Streets by Wedge Pond amid tem-
pestuous rains and wind gusts to
participate in the dedieatiqn event

to one of this community’s most
=olavod and notable former resi-
ents.

Lewis Snow, president of the
Rotary Club, which was the in-
itintor, planner and major finan-
cial contributor toward building
the park site as a beauty spot—
similar to what was achieved at
the Common through the leader-
ship of the late Mr. Elliott, offici-
ated at the dedieation ceremony.

Mr. Snow commented on the
Mr. Elliott's many contributions
in ecivie life through his work in
Rotary, such as upgrading the
Common, starting the annual Ro-
tary Auctiou—-wbkh this year
raised over $12,000, and most of
which is turned over to youth and
service groups such as Boy and
Girl Scouts and the Hospital, the
Girl Scout Cabin and Winning
Farm, among many others.

Reverend Clay spoke further on
the late Mr. Elliott's strengths of
character, integrity and service to
the Town—and his inspiration of
these qualities in others around
him. “He was a ‘homespun boy' in
the best meaning of the phrase,”
the Rotary Chaplain nsserted.

The Reverend John Bishop of
the Episcopal Church led a pray-
er in memory of the late Mr. El-
liott, and the Reverend John O’
Domll of St. Mary's Ghmb

the invocation after
pumd:mmérm on.
the rock and plaque dedieation

site,

The aresn now known as the Al-
fred Elliott Park was originally
acquired for park purposes by
vote of the Town Meeting of
glb;nh 21, 1920, ut a cost of $40,-

All houses on the land at the
corner of Main and Lake Streets

* were taken down, the cellar holes

filled, and & new and shorter
channel for Horn Pond Brook
from the Luake Street bridge to
the point of entrance into Wedge
Pond dug.

The Waterways Committee at
that time in 1929 told the Town
Mecting:

ELLIOTT PARK, cont. page b
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June 1, 1967 continued
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July 18, 1968 — Star Editorial
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